# **CARLISLE SWIM CLUB, INC.**

# **BY LAWS**



# **RULES & REGULATIONS**

2017

# **BY-LAWS OF CARLISLE SWIM CLUB**

#### ARTICLE I – NAME

The name of this organization shall be Carlisle Swim Club.

#### **ARTICLE II – PURPOSE**

The purpose of this organization shall be to provide group sports and recreation for its members; to promote the spirit of clean sportsmanship and high ideals in the participation in such group sports and recreation; to acquire such property, real and personal, as shall be deemed necessary to carry out the purposes herein set forth; and to construct, operate and maintain such facilities (including, but not limited to, swimming pools and playgrounds) as shall be deemed necessary in carrying out the purposes herein contained. Said corporation shall be operated on a strictly non-profit basis, so that no pecuniary profit, incidental or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of its members.

#### **ARTICLE III – MEMBERSHIPS**

Section 1. Memberships in this organization shall consist of the following types or classes, and shall not exceed the equivalent of 500 family memberships, where family memberships are counted as a whole membership and all other categories are counted as half memberships:

### (a) FAMILY MEMBERSHIPS

This type shall consist of husband and wife and all dependent, unmarried children of same under 21 years of age. Also said children over 21 years of age qualifying as full time students.

- (b) SINGLE MEMBERSHIP
  - This type shall consist of one person only and shall entitle only the named person to participate in the activities and use the facilities of the club. Minimum age required: 18 years.
- (c) SINGLE HEAD OF THE HOUSEHOLD MEMBERSHIP
  - This type shall consist of an adult and all dependent, unmarried children of same under 21 years of age. Also said children over 21 years of age qualifying as full time students.
- (d) SPECIAL MEMBERSHIP
  - The Board of Directors shall have the power to create other classes of membership as it shall deem advisable.
- (e) NON-QUOTA MEMBERSHIP
  - Children of members attaining the age of 21 years at a time when the membership quota is filled may be granted a special non-quota membership at the discretion of the Board.

SECTION 2. Any member of this organization may withdraw at any time, subject to the provisions of Article VII, Section 7 herein, provided however, no dues shall be refunded upon such withdrawal.

SECTION 3. Any member of any class, or any individual included in any of the types of membership in which more than one person is included, may, for cause shown and after having been given an opportunity for a hearing before the Board of Directors, be suspended for a period of not more than three months, provided 2/3 of the members of

the Board vote in favor of such suspension, and may be expelled from membership provided ¾ of the members of the Board vote in favor of such expulsion.

SECTION 4. (a) All classes of the memberships shall be accorded the facilities of the club subject to the rules and regulations for use of same adopted by the Board of Directors, which rules and regulations shall be kept on file with Pool Manager.

- (b) A card shall be issued by the Secretary upon payment of dues, to every member.
- (c) The Board of Directors shall by rule, fix the terms and conditions upon which guests of club members may use the facilities of the club.
- (d) Any property of the club broken or damaged by a member or his guest shall be promptly paid for by such member.
- (e) This corporation assumes no responsibility, and members or their guests can have no claim against the corporation or it's Board of Directors, officer or employees, for loss or damage to property of members or guests brought upon corporation property.
- (f) No intoxicating beverages shall be sold or consumed on corporation premises, with the exception of specific Club sponsored events when alcohol can be brought onto the premises only as authorized by the Board of Directors.

#### ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. The government of the club shall be vested in a Board of Directors consisting of nine elected members in good standing.

The Board shall consist of those persons named in the articles of incorporation, all of whom shall hold office until the first annual meeting. At the said meeting, the membership shall vote for permanent directors as follows:

- (a) Three (3) directors shall be nominated to serve for a period of one year, three for two years and three for three years.
- (b) Therefore, at each annual meeting three directors shall be elected to serve for a period of three years

SECTION 2. Nominations for the office of director shall be made by a Nominating Committee appointed by the President, and may also be made from the floor, at the annual meeting.

A list of the persons nominated by the Committee shall be mailed to the membership with the notice of the annual meeting.

The Nominating Committee shall consist of five voting members in good standing, who shall not be members of the Board of Directors, Officers or Employees of the Corporation. The Nominating Committee shall nominate candidates for vacancies in the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. Any member of the Board of Directors who shall cease to hold membership in this organization shall automatically cease to be a member of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. A Director cannot serve on the Board for more than six consecutive years.

SECTION 5. The Board of Directors shall hold regular monthly meetings except during the months of November through February, and at such other times as they may deem necessary, and shall meet at the request of any two regularly elected officers.

SECTION 6. Meetings shall be held on the same day of each calendar month as the Board by resolution shall decide.

SECTION 7. A majority of the Directors in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of a majority of Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 8. Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining members of the Board, and each person so elected shall serve until the next annual meeting, or until his successor is elected and qualified.

SECTION 9. A Director may be removed from office for cause, by a vote of a majority of the Board, after 10 days notice to the Director concerned to attend a hearing before the Board.

SECTION 10. The President or in his absence the Vice-President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. In the absence of both those officers the Directors present shall elect a Chairman of the meeting.

SECTION 11. The Secretary, or in his absence, a Director appointed by the presiding officer, shall record minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 12. The Board of Directors, in addition to all the powers and duties conferred by law, shall have the following powers and duties:

- (a) To transact all club business and make and amend rules for the regulation of the use of corporation property. It may appoint and remove such officers, clerk's agents and servants and employees as it may deem necessary and may fix their duties and compensations.
- (b) Elect members of the organization.
- (c) Prescribe rules for the government and use of club facilities.
- (d) Fix, impose and remit penalties for violations of these By-Laws and Rules of the Club.
- (e) Prepare an annual report showing the state of membership and finances, setting forth the transactions and summarizing important activities of the preceding calendar year; said report shall be presented to the general membership at the annual meeting.
- (f) Adopt an annual budget upon recommendation of the Finance Committee.
- (g) Supervise all committees, with power to direct their activities and to alter or amend any rules or regulations prescribed by any committee.
- (h) Fix guest fees and privileges.
- (i) Borrow such money as it shall deem necessary for the proper construction, maintenance and operation of the club facilities.
- (j) Under no circumstances shall the Board of Directors undertake any new projects in any calendar year aggregating more than 10 % of the annual operating budget unless it is approved by the majority of members present at a regular or special meeting of the membership. It is not intended to include any of the original plans for the construction of the swimming pool or its appurtenant facilities in this limitation.

SECTION 13. The Board of Directors shall, at club expense, secure the fidelity of the Treasurer, and any other officers, assistant officers or employees they see fit, by bond in such amount as they deem necessary.

SECTION 14. The Board of Directors shall require an audit of the accounts of the corporation for each calendar year by Auditors selected by the Directors, who shall be neither Directors, Officers or employees of the corporation, or by independent accountants engaged for the purpose, and shall make said audit report available to all members at all times.

SECTION 15. The Board of Directors shall secure for the protection of the corporation such public liability, property damage and other forms of insurance as they may deem necessary.

# **ARTICLE V – OFFICERS**

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors shall elect from their body a President and a Vice-President, who shall serve for one year. The Board shall employ a Secretary-Treasurer to complete all administrative duties at the direction of the Board.

SECTION 2. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following the annual general membership meeting.

SECTION 3. The Board of Directors shall have power to fill any vacancies in any office, and officers so appointed shall serve until the next annual meeting, at which time successors shall be elected.

#### SECTION 4. The President shall:

- (a) Preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and the members.
- (b) With the Secretary sign all contracts and papers relating to the affairs of the corporation.
- (c) Make all committee appointments
- (d) Be ex-officio a member of all committees.
- (e) Perform all other acts properly belonging to his office, including executive supervision of all activities of the corporation and its employees.

SECTION 5. The Vice-President shall assist the President and perform his functions in his absence.

SECTION 6. The Secretary-Treasurer (whether one or two persons), at the direction of the Board of Directors, shall:

- (a) Make and keep minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the members.
- (b) Maintain a membership record, including names and addresses, and such other data concerning admission to, maintenance and termination of membership as he may deem appropriate, or as may be required by the Board of Directors.
- (c) Keep all other corporate records.
- (d) Conduct all official correspondence.
- (e) Issue calls for meetings
- (f) Issue membership cards
- (g) Have custody of the corporate seal
- (h) Attest the signature of corporate officers when required.
- (i) Make and keep records of all financial transactions of the corporation.
- (j) Be responsible for the receipt of all monies due the corporation and deposit the same in bank accounts or other places of deposit approved by the Board of Directors, paying any service charges on such accounts as he may think proper.
- (k) Keep a corporation certificate register book showing the names and addresses of holders of certificates in the corporation, together with a complete record of payment in full or on account thereof, and the serial number and date of certificates issued.
- (I) Individually sign all checks and make all disbursements. In case of his unavailability, checks may be signed by either the President or Vice-President.
- (m) With the approval of one other elected officer, advance not to exceed Two Hundred (\$200.00) Dollars to any remaining officer, director or committee chairman who is required to expend cash for corporate purposes, upon receipt of a signed voucher therefore. An accounting from the person receiving cash shall be required by the Treasurer.
- (n) Perform such other functions as may be appropriate to his office, or required by the Board of Directors.

#### **ARTICLE VI – COMMITTEES**

### SECTION 1. The standing committees shall be:

- (a) Finance Committee
- (b) Operation Committee
- (c) Membership Committee
- (d) Planning & Improvements Committee

(e) Social

SECTION 2. Only Directors shall be chairman of standing committees

SECTION 3. The Finance Committee shall consist of current Board members and active Club members on a volunteer basis, and shall:

- (a) Prepare and submit to the Board of Directors before March 1 each year an annual budget providing for all anticipated expenditures of the corporation for the year.
- (b) Make recommendations to the Board of Directors on fiscal matters.
- (c) Perform such other functions as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. The Operating Committee shall consist of current Board members and active Club members on a volunteer basis, and shall:

- (a) Employ and supervise pool attendants and other personnel required for the safe and proper conduct of activities and functions of the corporation, subject to the provisions of Article IV, Section 12a, of these By-Laws.
- (b) Make expenditures for normal operations as authorized in the annual budget.
- (c) Enforce rules and regulations governing the use and operation of the swimming pool and other facilities, including the date and time of opening and closing and the conduct of the members, guests and employees.
- (d) Do all necessary things for the safe and proper maintenance and operation of corporation property, facilities and equipment.

SECTION 5. The Membership Committee shall consist of current Board members and active Club members on a volunteer basis and shall be responsible for:

- (a) The investigation and approval of the Board of Directors of all prospective members.
- (b) The performance of such other functions concerning membership as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 6. The Planning & Improvements Committee shall be responsible for:

- (a) Planning all major changes in, additions to and improvement of corporation property, facilities and equipment, and submitting plans, estimates and recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.
- (b) Performing such other functions as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 7. There shall be such other committees as the President may appoint.

# **ARTICLE VII – DUES, FEES AND CHARGES**

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors shall establish dues, fees, and charges in such amounts as it shall deem advisable and necessary, subject to the provisions of this article. Dues and other income shall be sufficient to provide for the necessary operating expenses of the club and the proper maintenance, improvement of its property, future development and amortization of indebtedness.

SECTION 2. All dues shall be payable annually by May 1 of each year in the amount specified by the Board of Directors for that year as being advisable and necessary. No dues, nor any part thereof, shall be refunded in the event that Club facilities shall cease operation or be suspended for any reason.

SECTION 3. A membership fee shall be required of each member and each member shall receive a non-transferable certificate of membership therefore. The holder of a certificate of membership shall become a member as provided for in Article III. The membership fee shall be paid at once, at the beginning of membership, and shall be refundable only as provided for in this article. Each membership accepted shall be accepted subject to the payment of such membership fee in the following amount:

Family Membership \$150.00 Single & Single Head of Household Membership \$150.00 Special Membership as the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, shall determine.

Current Board of Directors may set method of payment as conditions warrant.

SECTION 4. Monies derived from membership fees shall be used for maintenance, improvement of facilities, future development of facilities and amortization of indebtedness. Such membership fee shall not be deemed a loan, note, or evidence of indebtedness and shall give the member no equity in the Club property.

SECTION 5.

- (I) Memberships purchased prior to January 1, 2015:
  - Should any holder of a certificate of membership cease to be a member for any cause, the certificate held by that member shall become null and void upon the date said holder ceases to be a member. Upon termination of membership, the club may redeem said certificate in the following manner:
    - (a) Memberships purchased prior to July 1, 1974, shall be redeemed in the full amount paid therefore.
    - (b) Memberships purchased after July 1, 1974, shall be redeemed at a reduced amount, according to the following schedule:
      - Family certificate costing \$200 .00 redeemable for \$150.00 Single & Single Head of Household membership costing \$100.00 redeemable for \$75.00
    - (c) Memberships purchased after March 2, 1986, shall be redeemed at a reduced amount, according to the following schedule:
      - Family certificate costing \$300.00 redeemable for \$150.00
      - Single & Single Head of Household membership costing \$150.00 redeemable for \$75.00.
        - (1) Exceptions include:
          - a. Non-Family Memberships purchased prior to January 1, 2015, who request an upgrade to a Family Membership on or after January 1, 2015: Any upgrade from a non-family membership to a family membership will require the relinquishment of the previously issued Certificate of Membership redeemable for \$75 to the Club. A new Certificate of Membership will be issued with no redeemable value.
    - (d) Special Membership As the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, shall determine.
    - (e) Income provided by redemption of memberships at reduced amounts as provided herein shall be used for capital improvements and other such projects as determined by the Board of Directors.
    - (f) The time and manner in which the holder shall be paid the value of his certificate shall be redeemed in the chronological order in which the memberships terminate, and not before payment of the membership fee is received from a new member replacing the retiring member.
    - (g) In the event that any holder of a certificate of membership shall cease to be a member and shall notify the Board of Directors, in writing, of his intention to decline to accept redemption value of his certificate, the value shall inure to the benefit of the Club and shall be used as provided for in (e) above, of this section.
- (II) Membership purchased or after January 1, 2015:
  - Should any holder of a certificate of membership cease to be a member for any cause, the certificate held by that member shall become null and void upon the date said holder ceases to be a member.
    - (a) Membership Certificates have no redeemable value upon termination of membership.
    - (b) Exceptions include: Any Memberships that were partially paid in 2014. These memberships will fall under Section 5(I)(c).

SECTION 6. In the event of the dissolution of the organization in any manner or for any cause, and in no other event, each holder of a redeemable certificate of membership, shall be deemed to hold a lien upon the proceeds of the sale of the property of the organization after payment of all its just debts and obligations, to the extent of

the then redemption value of the certificate, subject to set-off of all debts, dues and obligations owed by the holder to the organization. Certificates of membership only have redeemable value as noted in Section 5.

SECTION 7. Any member failing to pay dues, charges or other indebtedness before the close of business on the first Sunday after the opening day of the Swim Club season shall be assessed a late fee determined by the Board of Directors. Those members who have not settled their indebtedness before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of the month following that in which a statement of his indebtedness shall have been sent to him by the Treasurer shall be notified that, if such indebtedness shall not be paid within fifteen days thereafter, the delinquent may be suspended by the Board of Directors.

Any person thus suspended shall immediately be notified in writing by the Secretary of his suspension, and if his indebtedness shall not be paid within fifteen days after sending of such notice, he shall cease to be a member. The Directors may reinstate any member upon request and repayment of all indebtedness to the Club. SECTION 8. For redeemable Membership Certificates only: Upon cessation of membership for any cause, all indebtedness owing to the Club by the member shall be lien upon and charged against the value of his certificate of membership, and the certificate may be taken over by the Club to satisfy such indebtedness. In event of the Club being unable to obtain possession of the certificate, it may be cancelled on the books of the Club. In case of the enforcement of a lien, as above provided, neither the signature of the holder nor the delivery of the certificate shall be requisite to perfect the transfer to the club.

SECTION 9. Members shall be responsible for the payment of all charges or liabilities that may be imposed upon or incurred by members of their family, and for all charges and liabilities imposed upon or incurred by guests introduced by them.

SECTION 10. All fees, dues and other charges mentioned herein are exclusive of taxes imposed by the Federal, State and other governmental bodies and agencies, which taxes shall be paid by the individual member. SECTION 11. Certificates issued under previous By-Laws of this organization shall be deemed "Certificates of Membership". Disposition of said certificates shall be controlled by the provisions of this article upon adoption.

### **ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS**

SECTION 1. The meetings of the members of the corporation shall be held annually: a Sunday in August at 2:00 p.m.

SECTION 2. The President may call special meetings of the members of the corporation upon direction of a majority of the Board of Directors, or upon written request of thirty-five (35) voting members in good standing. SECTION 3. Written notice of every meeting of the corporation shall be given to each member of record entitled to vote at the meeting, at least ten (10) days prior to the date named for the meeting.

SECTION 4. Ten (10) voting members shall constitute a quorum to transact business.

SECTION 5. All business laid before the meeting must be decided by a majority vote of the members present, which in all cases must be at least ten (10).

Section 6. Each member shall have one vote. For this purpose a husband and wife of a family membership shall each be considered a member.

#### **ARTICLE IX – DISSOLUTION**

SECTION 1. This corporation may be dissolved by a majority vote of all members at any regularly called meeting provided the decision to dissolve has been initiated and evidenced by a petition signed by at least one hundred (100) members and submitted to the Board of Directors at least two (2) weeks before the meeting called to act upon dissolution.

SECTION 2. In the event of dissolution or liquidation of this corporation, after payment of all liabilities, the assets of the corporation shall be disposed of as follows:

- (a) The certificate holders of record at the time of dissolution shall share pro-rata up to the amount of the then redemption value of their respective certificates, and all membership certificates shall be assigned to the corporation and cancelled.
- (b) Assets remaining after retirement of the membership certificates shall be given to such community organizations, charities and projects as the Board of Directors may determine by resolution.

#### ARTICLE X - MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 1. Each person who acts as Director, Officer, or Employee of the club shall be indemnified by the club against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by him in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which he is made by a party by reason of his being or having been a Director, Officer, or Employee, except in relation to matters as to which he shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or willful misconduct, and except any sum paid for the club in settlement of an action, suit or proceeding based on gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of duties. The right to indemnification provided herein shall inure to each Director, Officer or Employee, whether or not he is such at the time such costs or expenses are imposed or incurred, and the event of his death shall extend to his legal representatives.

SECTION 2. Any question as to the meaning or proper interpretation of any of the provisions of these By-Laws shall be determined by the Board of Directors, whose decision in such matters shall be final.

SECTION 3. Roberts Rules of Procedure shall govern the procedure to be followed at all meetings of this organization.

#### ARTICLE XI - AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended or a new By-Law made by vote of the majority of the members entitled to vote present at any meeting of the Club, provided that notice of the proposed amendment or By-Law shall have been posted for at least three (3) weeks and mailed by the club to each member entitled to vote at least ten (10) days before such meeting.

# CARLISLE SWIM CLUB RULES AND REGULATIONS

Certain rules and regulations have been established for the protection and benefit of all members. This is your pool and no set of rules can be any more effective than your adherence to them. The Swim Club Board is the ultimate authority in the enforcement of all rules set forth below.

Parent, please instruct your children and urge them to observe all rules and obey the instructions of the pool manager and all other employees.

The manager and other authorized personnel are responsible for the enforcement of all rules and regulations of the Carlisle Swim Club.

Any violation of these rules shall be considered sufficient cause for the immediate suspension of pool privileges for the offending members. Successive violations may be considered cause for cancellation of membership.

#### THE RULES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. All members shall enter the club grounds only through the regular entrance.
- 2. All vehicles shall be properly parked in the spaces provided for such use.
- 3. Pool hours:
  - a. 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. daily, weather permitting. All pool closures for weather are at the discretion of the pool manager on duty. Every reasonable attempt will be made to keep the pool hours consistent.
  - b. All private and group lessons must be conducted before 2:00 p.m. or after 6:00 p.m. each day. No lessons in the adult lap lanes if an adult member seeks to use the lane for lap swimming.
  - c. The pool may be closed for maintenance or <u>emergencies</u> at the discretion of the Manager or the Board of Directors.
  - d. The use of the pool in the absence of an authorized lifeguard is strictly prohibited.
- 4. No members will be admitted without presenting membership cards. All members will be issued membership cards that must be shown to the attendant at the pool entrance when members sign the daily register. Membership cards are not transferable and adult cards cannot be used for children and vice versa. Lost cards will be replaced by a small fee of ten dollars (\$10.00) will be charged and the card will be marked duplicate.

#### 5. Guests

- a. Local guests, residing within a 25-mile radius of the Swim Club facilities, are restricted to five admissions per season. The number of admissions for out of town guests will be at the discretion of the pool manager.
- b. Only members 16 years of age and older may sign in guests. All guests must leave when the member who signed them in leaves the pool. Guests who have not yet completed the second grade may only be signed in by adult members (i.e. members 18 years or older).
- c. Guests must abide by the same rules and regulations as members and are responsibility of members who bring them.
- d. Guests will be charged the following:
  - Adults and Children \$5.00
  - Children under three years of age are admitted free.
- 6. The child care program is available only to:
  - a. Two parent/grandparent/caretaker families in which each parent is gainfully employed for 25 hours or more per week during the swim season; or
  - b. Single parent/grandparent/caretaker families in which the adult caretaker is gainfully employed for 25 hours or more per week during the swim season.
    - These members may apply by letter to the pool manager for a special non-member babysitter pass to be issued for the full summer. The fee for this pass will be \$100.00.
    - (1) The letter of application must identify the baby-sitter by name, address, age and phone number.
    - (2) The baby-sitter must have reached his/her sixteenth year on or before the scheduled opening day of the season and a copy of normally accepted proof of age must be submitted to the pool manager with the letter of application.
    - (3) The baby-sitter shall not be considered a member of the pool. He/she will be issued a special card that must be presented to the manager on duty upon arrival and picked up upon departure each day.

- (4) The baby-sitter shall be required to leave the pool area when either or both of the parents/caretakers are present. It shall be the responsibility of the parents/caretakers to see that this rule is followed. Failure to abide by this rule will result in suspension of the member(s) from the program without refund.
- (5) If, at any time during the swim season, the babysitter leaves the employ of the members, the members shall immediately notify the manager and the card shall be returned. A new babysitter (meeting the criteria set forth above) may be substituted upon application and upon payment of a \$10.00 card and registration fee.
- No social organization or non-family member affiliated group or association shall be admitted to pool
  facilities with guest privileges. All family guests exceeding five will be admitted at the discretion of the
  pool manager.
- 8. The following health and safety rules must be observed in the use of the pools and grounds.
  - a. No glass containers of any kind shall be permitted in the pool or recreation areas.
  - b. No running, pushing, wrestling or rough housing shall be allowed in or about the pool area.
  - c. No pets allowed.
  - d. Admission may be refused to anyone with skin abrasions, colds, coughs, inflamed eyes, athlete's foot or to persons wearing bandages.
  - e. Children using the kiddie pool shall be ages 10 and under only. Use of the frog slide is limited to children ages 7 and under.
  - f. Children under the age of 13 years, prior to the opening day of the swim season, must be accompanied by a member 15 years or older who assumes responsibility for their safety and conduct at the pool. Individuals found irresponsible will be asked to leave the pool.
  - g. Expectorating and blowing of nose in pool is prohibited. No spitting in pool, deck or pool grounds.
  - h. Do not talk to lifeguards unless necessary. They are on duty to protect you and your children and when you engage them in conversation, you interfere with their effectiveness and possibly endanger the life of others.
  - i. All sunbathing must be confined to lawn areas.
  - j. The zero entrance handicapped ramp may not be obstructed by parents watching their children or children using it as a play area.
  - k. All pool activities will be regulated by the pool management and the Board of Directors.
- 9. The Carlisle Swim Club shall not be responsible for any accident, injury, theft, personal injury, personal loss or damage to personal property on the premises of the Club. Each member will be REQUIRED to sign an INFORMED CONSENT/LIABILITY WAIVER /RELEASE AGREEMENT form before receiving their annual membership cards every year. Signing this form is a condition of membership to the club. If you choose not to sign the waiver, you will not be considered a member of the club and will not be allowed admission into the club. Furthermore, your bond will be revoked in full.
- 10. The cost of any Club property damage shall be charged to the responsible active member.
- 11. No intoxicating beverages are permitted on Carlisle Swim Club property, with the exception of specific Club sponsored events when alcohol can be brought onto the premises only as authorized by the Board of Directors.
- 12. No profane or abusive language will be permitted.
- 13. All refuse must be placed in the containers provided for such purposes.
- 14. Smoking is not permitted inside the pool area.

- 15. The use of life jackets, inflated tubes or toys shall be at the discretion of the lifeguard on duty. Snorkel equipment may not be used at any time.
- 16. The throwing of objects (balls, diving toys) into the pool is permitted only at the discretion of the lifeguard, based upon number of people in the pool at the time.
- 17. Only authorized persons are permitted in the concession stand and office.
- 18. Recreational areas.
  - a. Games and picnicking shall be confined to designated areas.
  - b. All activities in the recreational area must be conducted so as not to interfere with use by the membership at large and may be curtailed at the discretion of the pool manager for proper reasons.
  - c. All cooking must be confined to the designated cooking area, and the disposal of ashes and refuse made in the containers provided.
- 19. All dues shall be payable by May 1 of each year. Resignation from membership does not relieve the annual dues obligation unless such resignation has been tendered and accepted by the Board of Directors prior to the opening of the swimming season. Late fees may be charged for any dues received after Memorial Day, regardless of date.
- 20. Chairs and personal belongings left at the pool at the close of the season will be donated to a local charity.
- 21. These rules may be revised or additional rules established at any time by the Board of Directors.